
 

Enquiries relating to this agenda please contact marie.woodhouse@northyorks.gov.uk Tel:  
or e-mail  

Website: www.northyorks.gov.uk 
OFFICIAL 

 
Agenda 

Notice of a public meeting of  Community Development 
Directorate - Executive Members 
and Corporate Director Meetings 

To: Councillors Simon Myers. 

Date: Wednesday, 13th September, 2023 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue:  

 
Under his delegated decision making powers in the Officers’ Delegation Scheme in the Council’s 
Constitution, the Chief Executive Officer has power, in cases of emergency, to take any decision 
which could be taken by the Council, the Executive or a committee.  Following on from the expiry 
of the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority 
and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020, which allowed for 
committee meetings to be held remotely, the County Council resolved at its meeting on 21 July 
2021 that, for the present time, in light of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic circumstances, 
remote live-broadcast committee meetings should continue (as informal meetings of the 
Committee Members), with any formal decisions required being taken by the Chief Executive 
Officer under his emergency decision making powers and after consultation with other Officers 
and Members as appropriate and after taking into account any views of the relevant Committee 
Members. 
 
The meeting will be available to view once the meeting commences, via the following link - 
www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings    Recordings of previous live broadcast meetings are also 
available there. 
 

Business 
 
1.   Declarations of Interest 

 
 

Items for decision by the Executive Member for Culture, Arts & Housing 
 

 

2.   NYC Housing Strategy Consultation  (Pages 3 - 30) 
 

3.   Any Other Items of Business   
 

4.   Date of Next Meeting - 15 September 2023   
 

 
Barry Khan 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.northyorks.gov.uk/
http://www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings


 

 
 

OFFICIAL 

Assistant Chief Executive 
(Legal and Democratic Services) 
 
County Hall 
Northallerton 
 
Date Not Specified 

Page 2



 

North Yorkshire Council 
 

Report to Councillor Simon Myers: Executive Member for Culture, Arts and 
Housing 

 
13th September 2023 

 
Housing Strategy Consultation 

 
Report of the Corporate Director Community Development 

 

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1  The purpose of this report is to seek permission from the Executive Member for Housing to 

undertake a programme of public consultation on the Council’s draft Housing Strategy.  
 

 
 
2.0 BACKGROUND  
 
2.1  As part of Local Government Reorganisation, the Council is now responsible for the 

delivery of the full range of housing services across the county. In order to meet the diverse 
housing needs of North Yorkshire and deliver the housing services, the Council will have to 
have in place a Housing Strategy. The Housing Strategy will set the objectives, targets and 
policies for how the Council will manage and deliver its housing service over the next few 
years.  

  
2.2 A draft Housing Strategy has been developed, which outlines the Council’s aims and 

ambitions for housing for the period 2024 to 2029. The Strategy sets out the Council’s 
vision  for housing action and investment across three key themes: People, Places, and 
Homes.   

 
2.3 Work was previously undertaken through the Local Government Reorganisation Housing 
 Workstream to develop the draft Housing Strategy for North Yorkshire. The next step is to
 now undertake a programme of consultation with key partners and stakeholders so that the 
 Strategy can be honed to ensure that it is relevant, ambitious and deliverable.  

 
2.4 A copy of the draft strategy has been attached to this report as a background document. 
 
 
3.0 HOUSING STRATEGY CONSULTATION PROCESS 
 
3.1 Permission is sought to consult with members, key partners and stakeholders, Registered 

Providers, Government agencies (such as Homes England) the Council’s tenants and 
residents, and other key Council services, on the draft Housing Strategy to ensure that we 
have identified the right priorities for action and investment, that will meet our housing 
needs. The draft Housing Strategy sets out a Vision to deliver ‘good quality, affordable and 
sustainable homes that meet the needs of all of our communities.’  

 
3.2 Through work done to date on the strategy, we have identified a number of key housing 

priorities to deliver this vision grouped under the following three themes: 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

Our people:  

- Preventing and tackling homelessness 

- Meeting the needs of our ageing population 

- Meeting supported housing needs and the needs of specific groups 
  
Our places:  

- Growing the supply of affordable and available housing  

- Addressing the rural housing crisis 

- Supporting communities through neighbourhood renewal and regeneration  

  
Our homes:  

- Decarbonising homes 

- Ensuring that new housing supply contributes to our net zero ambitions  

- Addressing stock condition issues 

- Ensuring that Council stock remains decent and continues to improve 
 
3.3 It is now intended to undertake a public consultation on the draft Housing Strategy, its 

vision and the identified themes and priorities. It is proposed to undertake the consultation 
between September and December 2023, the consultation period will be in the region of 10 
weeks. The table attached at Appendix C provides an overview of the consultation 
programme, outlining who we will consult with and how we will consult.   

 
3.4 The outcomes of the consultation will shape the final version of the Housing Strategy. This 

will then to be taken to the Executive for approval in early spring 2024, with a view to being 
adopted by the Council in May 2024. 

 
 
4.0 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN AND RESPONSES  
 
4.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval to go out to public consultation on the 

strategy. The further report to the Executive next year on the outcomes of the consultation 
will include detail of the responses to the consultation. 

 
 
5.0 CONTRIBUTION TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES  
 
5.1 The Strategy contributes principally to the following Council priority: 
 

 “Place and Environment: Good quality, affordable and sustainable housing that meets the 
needs of our communities” 

 
 
6.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED  
 
6.1 Adopting a Housing Strategy ensures that the Council has in place a clear plan to address 

the housing challenges that the Council faces. The Strategy will enable the Council and its 
partners to adopt a coordinated approach to tackling key housing priorities, it ensures best 
use of resources and puts the Council in a strong position to bid for any available future 
external funding opportunities.  Consulting on the draft Strategy ensures that we have in 
place a relevant, robust and comprehensive Strategy.   

 
6.2   Not consulting on the draft Housing Strategy would represent a missed opportunity to 

engage with stakeholders and partners, and sense check our proposals.     
 
 

Page 4



 

7.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
7.1 There are no financial implications of the consultation; the consultation programme will be 
 met from existing budgets.  
 
 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
8.1 There are no legal implications in respect of consulting on the Housing Strategy. However, 
 there is specific legislation which states that the Secretary of State can instruct a Council to 
 produce a housing strategy, we therefore should consider this a key strategic document to 
 have in place. 
 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS  
 
9.1 An Equality Impact Assessment Screening tool has been completed (Appendix A) and full 

equalities monitoring questions will be included as part of the consultation.   
 
 
10.0 CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS  
 
10.1 An initial Climate Change Impact Assessment has been undertaken and is attached at 

Appendix B.  
 
 
11.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
11.1 Consulting with stakeholders on the draft Housing Strategy ensures the development of a 

comprehensive and responsive Housing Strategy that has stakeholder ‘buy in’. It enables 
us to check that we have identified the right priorities and have set out the right set of 
actions to meet our housing needs. 

 
 

12.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 
It is recommended that approval be given to: 
 

i. undertake a detailed consultation programme with all relevant parties on the 
draft North Yorkshire Housing Strategy 

ii. bring forward a report to the Council’s Executive on the outcomes of the 
consultation and the adoption of the North Yorkshire Housing Strategy 

 
  

 
 APPENDICES:  
 Appendix A: EIA Screening   

Appendix B: Initial Climate Change Impact Assessment  
Appendix C: Consultation Programme summary 

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
 
Draft Housing Strategy 2024 to 2029 
 
 

Page 5



 

Nic Harne 
Corporate Director – Community Development 
County Hall 
Northallerton 
13th September 2023  
 
Report Author – Sharon Graham, Housing Strategy Manager  
Presenter of Report – Sharon Graham, Housing Strategy Manager/John Burroughs, Housing 
Strategy and Development Officer 
 
 
Note: Members are invited to contact the author in advance of the meeting with any detailed queries 
or questions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



 

 

1 

 

DRAFT North Yorkshire Council: Housing Strategy: 2024-2029 
 

1. Introduction  

This is the first housing strategy of the new North Yorkshire Council (NYC). It outlines our vision for housing 

across North Yorkshire, our priorities and the actions we will take. It provides a framework for the housing 

policies and projects we will deliver over the next five years. 

North Yorkshire contains diverse housing markets, with varying housing needs and many challenges. Local 

Government Reorganisation has given us a once in a generation opportunity; to transform services, drive 

innovation and improve outcomes for our communities and the people who need it most. 

We will take a proactive approach to housing delivery, and we will develop a bold plan to deliver more 

homes, including more affordable homes, working with partners, across North Yorkshire over the next five 

years. Our strategy demonstrates how we will use the new combined strength of the unitary authority 

and the advantage of being a stock holding Council to unlock greater resources, access funding 

opportunities and accelerate housing growth and regeneration, ensuring that we deliver sustainably, and 

develop inclusive places.   

We are an ambitious Council, keen to deliver excellent housing services and to be an exemplar social 

landlord. We will lead by example, driving up standards across our Council housing stock and taking 

enforcement action where we find landlords who are failing to meet safety requirements, ensuring decent 

and safe homes for all residents. 

 

1.1 What does North Yorkshire look like? 

North Yorkshire is the largest county in England and Wales, at over 8,000 square kilometres. The 

population is approximately 620,000, similar to major cities such as Leeds and Sheffield. However, the 

population density is 77 people per square kilometre, compared with the national average of 432 per 

square kilometre – this means that we are mostly rural with only two towns (Harrogate and Scarborough) 

having a population of over 50,000. 

Here are some more key housing facts:  

 Population: 619,542 

 Population grown by 2.85% since 2011 

 25% of the population aged 65 or over 

 Working age population has fallen by 2.6% since 2011 

 Number of households: 274,381 

 Average No. of persons per household: 2.24, down from 2.33 in 2011 

 27% of housing stock built before 1919 

 18.7% of households rent privately 

 Average house price: £284,000  

 Average household income (after housing costs): £28,448 

 Average rent: £730 per calendar month 

 Over 108,000 residents limited by health and disability 

Page 7



 

 

2 

 

 

1.2 Strategic Context:  

Housing and access to good quality affordable housing is critical to individual and community wellbeing. 

In strategic terms for the Council, housing is also: 

 a driver for sustainable and inclusive economic growth, 

 central to ensuring that our communities are sustainable and inclusive, 

 vital to delivering our climate change ambitions and our net zero targets.  

Within the North Yorkshire Council Plan (2023-2027), delivering “Good quality, affordable and sustainable 

housing that meets the needs of our communities” is a key ambition of the new Council. 

The Housing Strategy aligns with other key strategies within North Yorkshire including: 

Climate Change Strategy 

Economic Development Strategy 

Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

Current Local Plans and future North 

Yorkshire Local Plan  

York and North Yorkshire’s Devolution Deal 

How we link with our strategic partners and work together is crucial to the Council meeting its housing 

objectives. We have a wide range of key partners including Homes England, the emerging Mayoral 

Combined Authority (MCA), Registered Providers (RPs), alongside our local voluntary and community 

sector, delivery partners, and communities. 

Homes England has recently published its new Strategic Plan (2023-28) which puts a strong emphasis on 

levelling up, regeneration and on building a ‘housing and regeneration sector that works for everyone, 

driving diversification, partnership working, and innovation’. We will work alongside Homes England to develop 

action plans that deliver for our communities.  

 

 

1.3 Challenges  

There are some big challenges in North Yorkshire that affect our residents and communities, and impact 

on housing: 

 an ageing population, 

 significant inequalities in health and social outcomes,  

 sparsely populated rural communities and pockets of deprivation, 

 a low wage economy, 

 housing affordability and access to good quality homes, 

 improving the energy efficiency of our housing stock and reducing fuel poverty, 

 the impacts of Climate Change on our population and communities. 

Additionally, the Covid pandemic harmed our housing markets, exacerbating housing availability and 

affordability challenges. It also highlighted long-term pressures linked to entrenched deprivation, the 

erosion of support infrastructure and the lack of supported housing. We now face a ‘cost of living’ crisis, 

the impact of which we are only just starting to feel.  

 

Page 8



 

 

3 

 

1.4 Opportunities and Aspirations 

Despite the challenges, there are some great opportunities available to us.  

We have an opportunity to deliver housing growth both through working in partnership and by expanding 

our council housing stock. Working alongside partners through the York and North Yorkshire Housing 

Partnership we will look to develop a Housing Growth Plan and shared housing pipeline for the 

partnership area that links in with the housing aspirations of the Devolution Deal for York and North 

Yorkshire.  Devolution presents opportunities to deliver housing at pace and meet our wider economic 

growth ambitions. The creation of a Mayoral Combined Authority and the new powers that this will bring, 

will also be a driver for our housing and economic growth ambitions. 

Our aspirations for housing over the next five years, include: 

 Consolidating the Housing Revenue Accounts - bringing together Council owned homes, sites and 

landlord services; putting high management standards, safety, and involving our tenants at the 

heart of what we do. 

 Developing a Housing Growth Plan, which will include growing our own Council housing stock. 

 Exploring the housing development potential of publicly owned land, including Council owned sites. 

 Working with the York and North Yorkshire Housing Partnership to deliver the right homes in the 

right place, retrofit our homes, and invest in employment opportunities, including green skills. 

 Delivering on our commitment to be carbon neutral by 2034 and the economic opportunities that 

brings.  

 Realising the potential efficiencies of being one council; in particular, working with Health and Social 

Care colleagues to meet the needs of vulnerable residents, enable capacity and reduce pressure.  

 Using our capacity as a landlord and housing enabler to tackle inequalities, especially around health, 

social and digital exclusion, by coordinating and targeting resources, intervention, and support to 

best effect.   

Whilst acknowledging that there are risks, we are confident that by working together with our partners 

we can realise these aspirations. We have:   

 A combined reputation for developing and delivering quality affordable homes.  

 A strong track record of partnership working with Registered Providers to deliver affordable homes 

that meet a variety of needs.   

 Demonstrable success in attracting Government funding to deliver homelessness prevention, 

private sector housing improvements, enable rural housing, and rough sleeping reduction. 

 Experience in working closely, through our locality structures, with communities and community 

led organisations to provide housing to meet local needs. 

  

Page 9



 

 

4 

 

2. Our Vision and Key Themes 

Our Vision is to deliver: 

‘Good quality, affordable and sustainable homes that meet the needs of all of our communities.’ 

To do this we will work across three themes: 

 Our People 

 Our Places 

 Our Homes 

These themes represent what housing is all about; it’s not just about the bricks and mortar. It is about our 

people and places, and how we can as a Council, with our partners, use our resources to support them.  

 

3. Theme One: Our People 

‘Our People’ is about meeting the housing needs of our population and particularly our older households, 

homeless households, those threatened with homelessness, and households with support needs. It also 

includes specific groups such as Gypsies and Travellers, Refugees, and Asylum Seekers. 

Our key priorities for this theme are: 

 Preventing and tackling homelessness 

 Meeting the needs of our ageing population 

 Meeting supported housing needs and the needs of specific groups 

 

3.1 Preventing and tackling homelessness 

Homelessness is a growing problem across North Yorkshire, exacerbated by the pandemic, and the on-

going cost of living crisis. In addition, the supply of affordable housing in both the private rented and social 

rented sectors has significantly declined in the last three years. Despite these challenges we have achieved 

some successes in preventing homelessness, by taking proactive approaches to prevention and seeking 

innovative accommodation solutions. 

As significant pressure remains, with sharp rises in the number of homeless assessments in some areas 

(Craven locality: increased by 71% from 2021 to 2022; Richmondshire locality: increased by over 250% 

from 17 to 60 in same period). 

By far the biggest impact has been on the increased use of temporary accommodation for homeless 

households and the consequent increase in spending. As an example, within Scarborough, the cost of 

providing temporary accommodation increased from £281,000 in 2019/20 to £1.1 million in 2021/22. The 

use and cost of temporary accommodation is likely to continue to rise, as more households are threatened 

with homelessness and a reduced supply of “move-on” accommodation in both the private and social 

rented sectors. 

We will meet these challenges by: 

 Bringing together homelessness prevention and support services across North Yorkshire to tackle 

homelessness, using a range of prevention tools, best practice, and interventions to prevent 

homelessness.  

Page 10



 

 

5 

 

 Delivering new, innovative and existing accommodation solutions, including new temporary 

housing, and improving support and access to services. 

 Doing all we can to reduce rough sleeping in North Yorkshire as much as possible, helping people 

live independent lives off the street. 

 Undertaking a full Homeless Review, leading to a new Homelessness Strategy by 2025. 

 

 

 3.2 Meeting the needs of our ageing population 

Currently one in four of our residents is aged 65 and over. The proportion of over 65s is predicted to 

increase further, with one in three of our residents expected to be 65 and over by 2035. Crucially, the 

number of over 85 year olds, who are more likely to use our services, is expected to grow by over 50% 

during the same period. We will need to develop our housing offer to ensure that it meets the needs of 

our growing older population. 

We have had a successful Extra Care programme over the last 20 years, which has seen the provision of 

new Extra Care schemes in virtually all of our main settlements. We need to continue to develop similar 

services and also look at new models of Extra Care and other specialised housing for older people. 

We recognise that we cannot meet all needs through the provision of new specialist accommodation and 

many older households will choose to remain living in their own home. Our Home Improvement Agencies 

(HIAs) will be essential ensuring that as many older residents as possible are supported to live 

independently. 

We know that some of our Council housing stock, which was developed specifically for older people, is 

not fit for purpose anymore and is becoming hard to let. We will update this stock to ensure that it meets 

the needs of our older households. 

 

We will meet these challenges by:  

 Updating our extra care offer to meet changing needs, including developing new models of extra 

care to accommodate smaller schemes in rural areas, supporting those with complex needs, 

including working age people with learning and physical disabilities, as well as people with 

dementia. 

 Working with Health and Social Care colleagues to ensure a holistic approach to meeting the needs 

of older people. 

 Updating our own homes to provide improved specialist and adaptable housing for older people. 

 

 

3.3 Meeting supported housing needs and the needs of specific groups 

Supported housing needs vary across North Yorkshire and include the needs of those with physical and 

learning disabilities, and residents with mental health issues. 17.5% of residents in North Yorkshire were 

limited in some way by a health or disability. Whilst some residents with support needs will seek some 

form of specialist accommodation, many will want to remain living in their own homes.  

For those with physical disabilities the Council’s Home Improvement Agencies (HIA) in conjunction with 

Health and Social Care are well placed to support people living independently, including through the use 

Page 11



 

 

6 

 

of Disabled Facilities Grants (DFGs). Better integration with Health and Social Care is key to ensuring that 

we meet other supported housing needs, including learning difficulties and mental health needs, as well 

as families with children with disabilities. The Council now has a great opportunity to marry up its 

resources to meet all supported housing needs. 

The retention of a structured housing pathway for care leavers through a joint partnership with Children 

and Young Peoples Services is a priority; ensuring that this is resourced effectively going forward.   

We will continue to meet the housing needs of our Gypsy and Traveller communities, through the 

provision of both high quality and easily accessible sites and support services. 

A more recent challenge has been the resettlement of refugees and asylum seekers across North 

Yorkshire. In parts of North Yorkshire, refugees and asylum seekers have been located in hotels and other 

temporary accommodation. As these communities begin to settle in local neighbourhoods, there is a need 

to support them to secure more permanent accommodation and provide on-going support services.  

 

We will meet these challenges by: 

 Ensuring better integration of health and social care in line with the Start Well – Live Well – Age 

Well approach community based preventative pathways.  

 Enhancing home improvement services to ensure that homes can be adapted to meet the needs of 

residents.  

 Working together to deliver a more efficient and effective Young Peoples Housing Pathway.  

 Helping residents to live independently with the aid of assistive technology, including undertaking 

an options appraisal of all available service delivery models.  

 Supporting refugee resettlement pathways and support services via a dedicated refugee 

resettlement team. 

 Ensuring that the housing needs of Gypsy and Traveller communities are met.  

 

 

 

4. Theme Two: Our Places 

‘Our Places’ is about our towns, villages and neighbourhoods and the housing market challenges they 

face, and what we can do to tackle them.   

Our key priorities for this theme are: 

 Growing the supply of affordable and available housing  

 Addressing the rural housing crisis 

 Supporting communities through neighbourhood renewal and regeneration 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12



 

 

7 

 

4.1 Growing the supply of affordable and available housing  

Parts of North Yorkshire have some of the least affordable housing outside the South East of England, 

with property price/household income (after housing costs) ratios averaging 10 times across the whole 

of North Yorkshire in 2021, even reaching 13 times in the Harrogate locality. The average house price in 

North Yorkshire had risen to £284,000 in October 2022, an increase of over £100,000 in 12 years. 

Affordability is exacerbated by North Yorkshire’s low wage economy; median annual pay is as low as 

£20,000 in some locations, significantly below the national average of £26,000. This means that fewer 

local households can afford to purchase a home on the open market and are reliant on other forms of 

tenure. We understand that a lack of access to affordable housing acts as a barrier to economic growth, 

as well as putting pressure on the delivery of essential services as those on lower income struggle to 

access housing within our high value constrained housing market and we are committed to increasing the 

availability of affordable housing.  

Home ownership levels are high in North Yorkshire with almost 70% of households owning their own 

home (England: 63.75%). By contrast social rented housing accounts for less than 12% of our households 

(England: 16.6%). In some localities (Craven, Harrogate) it is less than 10%. As a result, we have a chronic 

lack of affordable housing, particularly in some of our most expensive places to live.  

We understand that a lack of access to affordable housing acts as a barrier to economic growth, as well 

as putting pressure on the delivery of essential services as those on lower income struggle to access 

housing within our high value constrained housing market.  

“Our Places” are also affected by growing shortages of affordable private rented housing. The attractive 

nature of North Yorkshire makes it a popular holiday destination. Since the Covid pandemic the demand 

for ‘staycations’ has risen, which has resulted in an increase in the levels of short-term holiday lets.  

Decreasing numbers of private rentals result in higher demand and rising rents, making private rented 

homes less affordable to would be renters on low incomes. It is also severely affecting the overall supply 

of residential housing in locations such as Whitby, Filey, coastal villages and much of our National Parks. 

As a result, we urgently need to increase the supply of affordable housing. 

 

We will meet these challenges by: 

 Delivering at least 2,537 new homes per year across all tenures, including a minimum of 802 new 

affordable homes each year. We will also look at how we can work with our partners through the 

York and North Yorkshire Housing Partnership to deliver the affordable homes that we need.  

 Developing an ambitious Council Housing (Housing Revenue Account) Business Plan, which will 

include growing the Council’s housing stock. 

 Working with the Mayoral Combined Authority and City of York Council to develop a Housing 

Growth Plan and supply pipeline, as well as deliver the Brownfield Housing Fund allocation. 

 Pursuing opportunities to bolster housing supply (temporary and permanent) in the medium to long 

term by working with new partners such as the Ministry of Defence, and One Public Estate.  

 Maximising all sources of funding to support affordable housing viability and boost delivery.  

 Reviewing all our land assets to identify land that could be used for new housing (affordable and 

market homes). 

Page 13



 

 

8 

 

 Developing our affordable housing delivery model, ensuring that we capture the best delivery 

models and develop them further to enhance affordable housing supply. 

 Working with partners, including the Mayoral Combined Authority, to better understand the need for 

key worker accommodation across North Yorkshire.      

 

 

4.2 Addressing the rural housing crisis: 

North Yorkshire is the largest geographical county in England covering 3,000 square miles of 

predominantly rural terrain, where 35% of our population live. Only 2% of our localities are urban but 

these areas accommodate 65% of our population. There are only two towns with a population in excess 

of 50,000. All other towns have a population of less than 25,000. 

 

 

 

Sparsely and super-sparsely populated communities present a challenge in terms of inclusion and 

community sustainability, as well as service delivery. In sparsely populated rural areas people can 

experience physical and digital isolation with difficulty accessing services, jobs and transport links. Housing 

is more expensive within these areas, both to rent and to buy, and affordable housing supply is limited. 

We know that rural poverty is often hidden and the financially vulnerable are dealing with higher cost of 

living increases, fuel poverty and insecure employment. a lack of digital connectivity and the persistence 

of ‘not spots’ exacerbates exclusion and disadvantage in our rural areas. More rural affordable with better 

connectivity is essential to ensuring inclusion and the sustainability of our rural communities.  

 

We will meet these challenges by: 

 Supporting the Rural Housing Enabler Partnership and Community Led Housing groups – to ensure 

a supply of housing is maintained, of the right quality, type and tenure in rural areas.  

Page 14



 

 

9 

 

 Keeping sufficient focus on affordable housing supply in our rural communities. 

 Working with key partners to ensure that rural affordable homes are digitally enabled. 

 Working with the York and North Yorkshire Housing Partnership, the Mayoral Combined Authority, 

and Homes England to develop an enhanced rural affordable housing supply pipeline, and ensure 

that there is sufficient investment to deliver the homes needed.  

 

 

4.3 Supporting communities through neighbourhood renewal and regeneration 

Whilst most of North Yorkshire is relatively affluent with low levels of deprivation, there are some very 

high concentrations of deprivation. A significant part of Scarborough town is within the most 10% 

deprived neighbourhoods in the country and 85% of North Yorkshire’s most deprived residents reside in 

Scarborough, with further pockets of high deprivation in Selby and Harrogate. The levels of deprivation 

are in line with those of inner-city metropolitan locations.  

 

Contributing to the levels of deprivation are:  

 A low wage economy.  

 High levels of households reliant on benefits.  

 Low educational and skill levels.  

 A poorer physical environment.  

 Significantly high concentrations of private rented properties (over 50% in inner Scarborough).  

There is a need to develop a holistic neighbourhood renewal approach to address these issues in 

partnership with other key service areas (Planning, Economic Development, Environmental services, 

Health) and external partners.  

North Yorkshire has some major strategic regeneration projects and priorities, including the 

redevelopment of Catterick Town Centre, where £19m Levelling Up Fund investment is regenerating the 

town centre. This investment has the potential to unlock significant future brownfield housing sites within 

Page 15



 

 

10 

 

Catterick.  There are significant regeneration projects within Selby and new settlements being created at 

Maltkiln (between 3,000 and 4,000 new homes), and Ripon Barracks (1,300 new homes). These projects 

are catalysts, not just for the delivery of housing but generating economic growth and key infrastructure 

improvements that will benefit the whole of North Yorkshire. 

Tackling empty homes will also support regeneration in local neighbourhoods and will provide more 

homes for local households, including more affordable homes. Whilst the proportion of long-term empty 

homes across North Yorkshire is roughly similar to the national average at just over 1%, this is still over 

3,000 empty homes. There are slightly higher proportions of empty homes around Skipton and Malton.  

 

 

We will meet these challenges by: 

 Developing an approach to neighbourhood renewal for our most deprived neighbourhoods.  

 Working with key partners to support communities through projects that will improve their local 

environment. 

 Working in partnership with the Mayoral Combined Authority and Homes England to drive strategic 

regeneration projects across North Yorkshire. 

 Developing a new Empty Homes Strategy to bring long term empty properties back into use.  

 

  

Regeneration in Selby 

The latest census data shows Selby had the highest percentage increase in population of any local authority in 

Yorkshire and Humber between 2011 and 2021 with over 10% growth. 

Within Selby itself are two major brownfield housing allocations at the former Rigid Paper site (330 homes) and 

ICL (450 homes), together with the adjacent Selby Station Quarter regeneration area, which also has scope for 

redevelopment for residential uses. This suite of sites can provide a new urban village of around 1000 homes 

next to the town’s rail and bus stations, which themselves are being transformed through the £28m Selby 

Station Gateway project.  

Heronby (south west of Escrick) is the proposed new settlement in the most recent Selby District Local Plan 

(3387 homes by 2065)  

At Eggborough, an allocation remains for 1500 dwellings by 2048. This mixed use development will comprise of 

residential, open space and education. 

In addition, the Cross Hills Lane site at Selby is allocated for 1270 dwellings by 2043 This will be a mixed use 

development, comprising: residential, open space, community and local shopping facilities and education. 

Page 16



 

 

11 

 

 

5. Theme Three: Our Homes 

Our Homes is about the challenges with our housing stock and how we can improve housing to ensure it 

is decent and affordable. We face huge challenges in ensuring that existing homes are decent, energy 

efficient, and can contribute to meeting our wider Climate Change aspirations. We also need to ensure 

that all new build housing meets the highest standards, and actively contributes to meeting our Climate 

Change aspirations. 

Our key priorities are: 

 Decarbonising the whole housing stock, including our Council homes, making them more energy 

efficient and affordable to live in, reducing fuel poverty  

 Ensuring that new housing supply of all tenures contributes to our net zero ambitions  

 Addressing stock condition issues, improving poor quality housing in all tenures 

 Ensuring that our Council housing stock remains decent and continues to improve  

 

6.1 Decarbonising the whole housing stock 

In North Yorkshire over 27% of the housing stock was built before 1919 (England: 21%). Older housing 

stock is often less well insulated and less energy efficient due to its construction, making it more difficult 

to improve. This in turn is a contributory factor to fuel poverty - over 15% of our households were 

recorded as being in fuel poverty in 2020.  With rising energy costs and wider costs of living increases, the 

proportion of households experiencing fuel poverty is likely to rise.  

 

In North Yorkshire, 18.7% of households privately rent their home, which is just below the national 

average of around 19%. There are higher levels of privately rented properties in Richmondshire (21%) and 

Scarborough (22%), with very high concentrations (over 50%) in parts of Scarborough. Privately rented 

stock tends to be older, has a higher rate of non-decent homes, and a higher proportion of lower income 

households. There will also be higher rates of less energy efficient privately rented stock and, 

consequently, higher proportions of households in fuel poverty. 

Page 17



 

 

12 

 

Work has already started to retrofit the council’s housing stock, with work underway in the Harrogate 

locality to retrofit homes with an EPC E or F rating to bring them up to an EPC C. However, a 

comprehensive plan for all our council homes needs to be developed to ensure all properties meet EPC 

“C”. 

 

We will meet these challenges by: 

 Developing a social housing decarbonisation plan, with the aim of getting all our council homes to 

achieve EPC C and up to Decent Homes Standard (when the target date is announced by 

Government). 

 Working with our Registered Provider partners and Homes England to implement investment plans 

to make their homes warmer and more affordable to live in.  

 Attracting Government funding to improve and decarbonise our private sector housing homes. 

 

6.2 Ensure that new housing supply of all tenures contributes to our net zero ambitions  

Ensuring that all new homes are built to high energy efficiency standards and contribute to our net zero 

ambitions is also crucial to achieving our Climate Change aspirations. Whilst progress has been made in 

recent years in uplifting the energy efficiency of new homes built, the recent introduction of Part L 

(conservation of fuel and power) of the Building Regulations, which came into force in 2022, and the 

proposed implementation of the Future Homes Standard in 2025, should contribute positively to these 

aspirations. Ensuring new homes are built to high energy efficiency standards will help ease energy costs 

during the current cost of living crisis.  

 

We will meet these challenges by: 

 Implementing new Design Codes to ensure an increase in the quality of new housing, working 

towards the Future Homes Standard and Nationally Described Space Standards.  

 Ensuring that all new Council homes are built to Future Homes Standard and meet EPC C as a 

minimum with a net zero carbon aim. 

 Supporting our Registered Provider partners to meet net zero carbon ambitions in the delivery of 

new affordable homes. 

 

 

6.3 Address stock condition issues, improving poor quality housing in all tenures 

The English Housing Survey (2021-22) shows 14% of all homes were deemed non-decent. Within the 

private rented sector the proportion is higher at 23%. Based on these figures, it is estimated that 

approximately 38,500 of all our homes are non-decent, of which almost 12,000 will be privately rented. 

The level of resources needed to tackle the issue is challenging, especially in the private rented sector. 

We have successfully bid for Government funding to set up a Pathfinder project to increase resources in 

our Private Sector Housing Renewal teams, with special focus on locations where resources have been 

scarce previously. 

Page 18



 

 

13 

 

We will undertake an assessment of the private rented sector across the whole of North Yorkshire, in the 

form of a “State of the Nation” report. This will provide an overall assessment of the private rented stock 

and market, which will inform future strategic planning and help us to target resources appropriately. 

 

We will meet these challenges by: 

 Producing a private housing stock condition baseline and a retrofit action plan to inform future 

investment.  

 Tackling stock condition issues, improving poor quality housing across all tenures. 

 Working with the Mayoral Combined Authority to deliver the Carbon Abatement Pathway.   

 Using our legal powers to enforce and raise standards in the private rented sector - taking a 

consistent and firm approach to raising housing standards, including the further development of 

selective licencing schemes. 

 

6.4 Ensuring the Council housing stock remains decent and continues to improve  

Managing 8,500 council homes, we are a major social housing landlord. We want to ensure that all of our 

residents live in a decent home. Whilst the vast majority of our stock meets the Decent Homes Standard, 

we know that just over 200 of the homes within our stock are classed as Non-Decent (LAHS: 2021/22).  

As well as bringing the current non-decent homes up to the Decent Homes Standard we will invest in an 

improvement programme to ensure that our homes are the highest standard possible. We know that 

some of our housing stock may no longer be fit for purpose. We need to appraise the stock and ensure 

that it meets modern standards, including installing digital technology to suit modern needs. 

The recent case of a child’s death, elsewhere in the country, caused by damp and mould in their social 

home, has led to increased regulation of safety in social housing. We will tackle any mould and damp 

issues in our properties effectively and ensure that we have a plan and resources in place to respond to 

all complaints of damp and mould within set timescales. 

We aim to become an exemplar landlord, providing high quality tenancy services. We will meet the 

expectations of the Charter for Social Housing Residents and look to develop our key policies in line with 

this and the new Social Housing Regulations 2022/23. 

 

We will meet these challenges by: 

 Implementing a robust investment plan for all our Council housing stock over the next 30 years. 

 Putting tenant safety first and fully meeting our regulatory responsibilities, including the eradication 

of mould and damp issues within set timescales. 

 Developing a new Tenancy Strategy and establishing clear and high standards for the delivery of 

tenancy services. 

 Appraising our Council housing stock and re-purposing where required. 

  

Page 19



 

 

14 

 

6. Addressing our Equality Objectives 

The North Yorkshire Council Plan has set a range of key equality objectives for the Council: 

 To understand the needs of our communities and work with them to meet those needs 

 To demonstrate commitment to equality, diversity and inclusion as an organisation, show 

leadership across the county and work in partnership to improve equality, diversity and inclusion 

 To provide responsive services and effective customer care to all 

 To have a diverse and engaged workforce and fair and inclusive employment practices 

 

We will meet these objectives through the following actions and approaches: 

 We will ensure equality of service to all our tenants, residents, customers and partners, including 

improving our equality monitoring arrangements. 

 We will identify and address the needs of any specific groups including ethnic minorities, the LGBTQ 

community, Gypsy and Traveller community 

 We will identify and address the needs of vulnerable households and groups such as older people, 

people with physical disabilities, people with learning difficulties and all other people with 

supported housing needs 

 We will ensure that our policies are fair and non-discriminatory and equally accessible to all 

residents 

 We shall meet the requirements of the Armed Forces Covenant and new due-regard duty, with 

respect to all our Housing Services and ensure that it is reflected within all of our housing policies, 

with specific regards to the Allocations Policy, Tenancy Strategy, Disabled Facilities Grant Policy and 

Homelessness Strategy. 

 

 

7. Key performance indicators and strategy review 

Setting out our high-level housing ambitions and priorities is just the start of the strategic planning 

process. A key tool in delivering our strategy is monitoring our performance and tracking trends which 

may impact on that performance. We will publicly monitor performance against the following Key 

Performance Indicators. These will be backed up by a wider dashboard of performance measures and 

market trends. 

 

  

Page 20



 

 

15 

 

7.1 Theme One: Our People 

Measure Frequency 

Number of new homes specifically developed for older people Annual 

Number of homeless assessments Quarterly 

Number of successful homeless preventions and reliefs Quarterly 

Number of households in temporary accommodation Quarterly 

Number of rough sleepers Quarterly 

Number of Disabled Facilities Grants completed Quarterly 

Number of refugee households resettled into permanent accommodation Annual 

 

 

7.2 Theme Two: Our Places 

Measure Frequency 

Overall new housing completions       Annual 

Number of Housing Revenue Account new builds (direct delivery) Annual 

Number of Housing Revenue Account acquisitions (buy back and S106) Annual 

Affordable housing completions         Annual 

Number of empty homes brought back into use  Annual 

Community-Led Housing completions and engagements ½ Yearly 

Rural Housing Enabler programme completions  ½ Yearly 

Units delivered through the Development Partnership ½ Yearly 

 

 

7.3 Theme Three: Our Homes 

Measure Frequency 

Number of Council owned homes improved through retrofit initiatives Annual 

Number of private homes improved through energy efficiency initiatives Annual 

Number of homes achieving EPC C or above Annual 

Number of private sector enforcement notices served Annual 

Number of new homes built to Future Homes Standards Annual 

Number of Council homes improved through Improvement Programme Annual 

 

 

7.4 Strategy Review  

Progress on the delivery of this strategy will be monitored by the Assistant Director for Housing on a 

quarterly basis and reported to the Executive Member for Housing Growth annually. The Strategy will be 

reviewed after three years. 

Page 21



 

 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 

Initial equality impact assessment screening form 
This form records an equality screening process to determine the relevance of equality to a proposal, and a 
decision whether or not a full EIA would be appropriate or proportionate.  
 

Directorate  Community Development 

Service area Housing 

Proposal being screened Housing Strategy Consultation 

Officer(s) carrying out screening  Sharon Graham 

What are you proposing to do?  Consult on the Housing Strategy 

Why are you proposing this? What are the 
desired outcomes? 

We are seeking to consult with external residents, 
stakeholders and partners on the Council’s draft Housing 
Strategy.  
To seek the views of residents, statutory agencies and 
partners on the proposed Housing Strategy and its 
priorities.   

Does the proposal involve a significant 
commitment or removal of resources? 
Please give details. 

No 

Impact on people with any of the following protected characteristics as defined by the Equality 
Act 2010, or NYC’s additional agreed characteristics 
As part of this assessment, please consider the following questions: 

 To what extent is this service used by particular groups of people with protected characteristics? 

 Does the proposal relate to functions that previous consultation has identified as important? 

 Do different groups have different needs or experiences in the area the proposal relates to? 
 

If for any characteristic it is considered that there is likely to be an adverse impact or you have 
ticked ‘Don’t know/no info available’, then a full EIA should be carried out where this is 
proportionate. You are advised to speak to your directorate representative for advice if you are in 
any doubt. 
 

Protected characteristic Potential for adverse impact Don’t know/No 
info available 

Yes No 

Age  X  
Disability  X  
Sex   X  
Race  X  
Sexual orientation  X  
Gender reassignment  X  
Religion or belief  X  
Pregnancy or maternity  X  
Marriage or civil partnership  X  

 
People in rural areas  X  
People on a low income  X  
Carer (unpaid family or friend)  X  
Are from the Armed Forces Community  X  
Does the proposal relate to an area where 
there are known inequalities/probable 
impacts (for example, disabled people’s 
access to public transport)? Please give 
details. 

The Strategy priorities seek to address inequalities in 
terms of access to decent, affordable housing 

Page 22



 

 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 

Will the proposal have a significant effect 
on how other organisations operate? (for 
example, partners, funding criteria, etc.). Do 
any of these organisations support people 
with protected characteristics? Please 
explain why you have reached this conclusion.  

The consultation exercise is an opportunity for 
people/organisations to feed into and shape the 
proposals within the Housing Strategy.  
 

Decision (Please tick one option) EIA not 
relevant or 
proportionate:  

 
 

    

Continue to full 
EIA: 

 
 

Reason for decision The consultation exercise will be open to all and the 
questionnaire used will comply with accessibility criteria.  

Signed (Assistant Director or equivalent) 

 
Date 1 September 2023 

 

Page 23



 

 

OFFICIAL 

Initial Climate Change Impact Assessment (Form created August 2021) 

The intention of this document is to help the council to gain an initial understanding of the impact of a project or decision on the 

environment. This document should be completed in consultation with the supporting guidance. Dependent on this initial 

assessment you may need to go on to complete a full Climate Change Impact Assessment. The final document will be published as 

part of the decision-making process. 

If you have any additional queries, which are not covered by the guidance please email climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk 

Title of proposal Housing Strategy Consultation 

Brief description of proposal To consult with residents, stakeholders and partners on the Council’s draft Housing Strategy and its 
proposed priorities to establish whether these are the right priorities.    

Directorate  Community Development 

Service area Housing 

Lead officer Sharon Graham, Housing Strategy Manager 

Names and roles of other 
people involved in carrying out 
the impact assessment 

John Burroughs, Housing Strategy Officer 

  

P
age 24



 

 

OFFICIAL 

The chart below contains the main environmental factors to consider in your initial assessment – choose the appropriate option 

from the drop-down list for each one. 

Remember to think about the following; 

 Travel 

 Construction 

 Data storage 

 Use of buildings 

 Change of land use 

 Opportunities for recycling and reuse 

Environmental factor to consider For the council For the county Overall 

Greenhouse gas emissions Choose an item. Choose an item. No effect on 
emissions 

Waste Choose an item. Choose an item. No effect on waste 

Water use Choose an item. Choose an item. No effect on water 
usage 

Pollution (air, land, water, noise, light) Choose an item. Choose an item. No effect on pollution 

Resilience to adverse weather/climate events 
(flooding, drought etc) 

Choose an item. Choose an item. No effect on 
resilience 

Ecological effects (biodiversity, loss of habitat etc) Choose an item. Choose an item. No effect on ecology 

Heritage and landscape Choose an item. Choose an item. No effect on heritage 
and landscape 

 

If any of these factors are likely to result in a negative or positive environmental impact then a full climate change impact 

assessment will be required. It is important that we capture information about both positive and negative impacts to aid the council 

in calculating its carbon footprint and environmental impact.  

P
age 25



 

 

OFFICIAL 

Decision (Please tick one option) Full CCIA not 

relevant or 

proportionate:  

 

Continue to full 

CCIA: 

 

Reason for decision Consulting with residents, stakeholders and partners is not considered to have any 

adverse climate impacts.  

One the Strategy priorities are finalised, following the consultation process, a full CCIA 

will be undertaken.  

Signed (Assistant Director or 

equivalent) 

 

Andrew Rowe 

 

Date 30/6/2023 

 

 

P
age 26



 

OFFICIAL 

Consultation and communications plan  

Name of consultation North Yorkshire Housing Strategy 2024-29 Key dates/activity/information 

Why do you need to 

consult?  

North Yorkshire Council are developing a new Housing Strategy and need to consult on whether 

we have the right themes, priorities and actions to meet our housing needs and challenges 

North Yorkshire Council has a duty under the Best Value Guidance which refers to local 

authorities' duty to "secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are 

exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness". 

As part of this duty we must consult 'representatives of council tax payers'. People who use, or 

are likely to use, services provided by the council and anyone who appears to have an interest in 

the area where it carries out functions. 

The consultation will run from:  

September – December 2023. 

What are the main aims 

and objectives? 

The main aims of the consultation are to:  

- To be a meaningful and robust consultation exercise 

- To consult as broad a range of relevant parties as possible 

- To seek feedback on the draft proposals. 

- To deliver reliable opinion on the draft proposals. 

 

The objectives of the consultation exercise are to:  

- Inform  (residents, tenants, Elected Members, partners, support agencies are informed 

about the draft Housing Strategy)  

- Engage (Focus Groups, social media blasts, key partner meetings, Council newsletter article 

to stimulate discussion around the draft Housing Strategy) 

- Evaluate (online survey to be promoted and available for 12 weeks. Focus group outcomes 

to be coded) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Inform – FAQs developed. Local focus 

groups. NY Wider Conference 

workshop. 

Engage – Meeting calendar to be to 

drawn up. 

Evaluate – survey to be open for 12 

weeks, with 2 weeks allowed after for 

analysis. 

What do you need to find 

out?  

We are seeking to find out if the Vision, Priorities and Actions we have put forward in the Draft 

Housing Strategy 2024-29 are supported locally. 

 

P
age 27



 

OFFICIAL 

Name of consultation North Yorkshire Housing Strategy 2024-29 Key dates/activity/information 

That nothing within the draft strategy would have a negative impact on any group with a 

protected characteristic. 

We need to know if there is anything else that should be included. 

What do you already 

know? (from previous 

consultation, knowledge or 

experience) 

The draft strategy has been based on substantive desk top evidence from a wide range of 

sources including data/information held by the Council/former districts, public data sources (e.g. 

Census, ONS etc.).  

 Staff Engagement Sessions undertaken in March 2023 fed into the draft strategy. 

 

Who will you consult 

with? 

Residents 

Tenants 

Local Businesses 

Elected Members 

Parish Councils 

Statutory Partners (eg Homes England)  

Registered Providers 

Voluntary and Community Sector 

Private Sector Landlords 

 

A detailed key stakeholder list will be 

developed. 

When will you consult? 12 week period avoiding local and national elections. September – December 2023. 

How will you consult? Online survey 

Key Partner meetings 

Workshops  and local forums (eg. NY wide Partnerships) 

 

 

How will the consultation 

be communicated/ 

publicised? 

Council webpage 

Social media 

Council newsletter 

Tenants newsletter 

Press Release 

 

P
age 28



 

OFFICIAL 

Name of consultation North Yorkshire Housing Strategy 2024-29 Key dates/activity/information 

Staff signatures? 

Civic centre screens? 

Who will monitor 

responses and provide 

updates on results? 

Housing Strategy Officers will carry out a mid-point review of responses.   

Who will analyse the 

results from the 

consultation? 

The results will be analysed by Housing Strategy Officers in the fortnight following the 

consultation end date. 

 

Who will the results be 

reported to and when? 

The consultation results will be reported to North Yorkshire’s Management Board and Executive 

Member for Housing. 

 

The results will form part of the decision report which will be presented to the Executive in 

March/April 2024 and to Full Council in May 2024. 

Jan/Feb 2024. 

 

 

March-May 2024 

How will you provide 

feedback to respondents 

and when?  

The consultation report will be available on North Yorkshire Council web page.  

Who will evaluate how 

successful the consultation 

has been and when? 

The Housing Strategy Officers will evaluate the success of the consultation and include 

commentary on this as the Housing Strategy progresses to decision. 

 

 

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 NYC Housing Strategy Consultation
	Housing Strategy Consultation - Exec Member Report 13 September 2023.pdf (p.1-4)
	NYC Housing Strategy - Draft text for consultation EMD 13092023 V1.pdf (p.5-19)
	Appendix A EIA Screening Housing Strategy Consultation (1).pdf (p.20-21)
	Appendix B Initial CCIA housing strategy consultation (1).pdf (p.22-24)
	Appendix C Housing Strategy Consultation Summary (1).pdf (p.25-27)


